
SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, April 11, 2016 
 

6:00 pm 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. MINUTES  
 

a. March 14, 2016 
 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Correspondence regarding Skehan Center lease; discussion of next steps 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Update on recent property damage and maintenance costs  
b. Recreation Department Affiliated Programs: updates and discussion of 

expectations regarding property maintenance and municipal level of service 
c. Update on planning for Children's Day 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

 



SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, March 14, 2016 

 
MINUTES – DRAFT   

 
Attending: 
 Councilor Terry McAvoy, Chair  Town Manager Angus Jennings 
 Mayor David Ryder    Recreation Director Shelley Abbott  
 Councilor Dennis Marble   Pool Director Darcey Peakall 
 Councilor Stephen Wilde   DPW Director Sean Currier 
 Councilor Mark Cormier   Resident Jeremy Jones Esq. 
 
Chairman McAvoy called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
 

1. MINUTES – February 8, 2016 – It was motioned and seconded to approve the 
minutes of the February 8, 2016 Services Committee meeting. Unanimous vote 
(5-0) in favor. 
 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Status update: Penobscot-Downeast Cable Television Consortium – 
Chairman McAvoy had requested that this item be placed on the agenda for 
update. Manager Jennings said it’s not clear that any progress has been 
made since this item was last discussed, referring to recent correspondence 
with other participants in the Consortium. He acknowledged that this has 
been a slow process and that it does not feel like the Town has had any 
ability to affect the process. Chairman McAvoy said he wasn’t sure what the 
Consortium does and he asked whether the Eastern Maine Development 
Corporation, which serves as the fiscal agent of the Consortium, takes a 
percentage of funds received. He asked whether Hampden is getting a 
franchise fee, and if so when is this received and how is it accounted for. 
Manager Jennings said he didn’t know what the business terms were, and 
that he’d look into it.  

 
b. Recreation/Conservation Reserve Account (3-769-00). Discussion of 

eligible uses, and process for budgeting and expenditures – Manager 
Jennings summarized that funds have been received over a period of more 
than a decade as “funds in lieu” of open space that had been required of 
subdivisions. Manager Jennings prepared a draft Policy in order to clearly 
define both the eligible uses of these funds, and the process by which 
expenditures from this account must be authorized. The Committee 
discussed the draft Policy and agreed that it met their objectives. Motion by 
Councilor Marble seconded by Mayor Ryder to recommend the draft Policy 
for Council approval. After discussion, the motion carried 5-0. 

 



3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion of recreation facilities; process for evaluation of Pool site 
potential for future expansion of facilities and parking – Mayor Ryder 
reported that he’d been looking into whether a community center could be 
accommodated on the site of the Lura Hoit Pool where the gazebo and 
volleyball courts are located. He said this was a potential longer term 
initiative, and that the work was very preliminary. He received plans that had 
been prepared for another community and reviewed them with the Recreation 
Director. The person who prepared the plans, Jeff Brown, has quoted a price 
of $800.00 to modify the plans. Mayor Ryder said that one question for 
discussion was whether, if the Town were to consider a community center, it 
should include the Library or not. He said that if a facility were pursued it 
would last for many years so would need to be planned based on the Town’s 
long-term needs. Councilor Wilde asked whether wetlands on the site would 
be a limiting factor, and Mayor Ryder said that a DEP permit would be 
needed in order to add any impervious surface to the site.  
 
Councilor Marble reiterated that while the concept is broad brush and 
preliminary, he asked whether all indoor activities could be held here. 
Recreation Director Abbott said yes. Councilor McAvoy asked about 
converting the current Pool building to a Library and Community Center. 
Councilor Marble said he didn’t think the Pool building could accommodate a 
community center, and he supported proceeding with conceptual plans. Pool 
Director Peakall asked what was meant by a community center “in the pool.” 
Councilor McAvoy said that he favored closing the Pool, filling it in, then using 
the building as a Library. Councilor McAvoy said he recalled hearing the 
Recreation Director say in the past that parents would object to relocating 
Kids’ Korner. Director Abbott said that transportation costs would need to be 
taken into account if there were to be a new facility location. Mayor Ryder 
said the two questions before the Committee were whether to proceed with 
modifying the plans for $800, and whether or not to include the Library. 
Councilor McAvoy said that if the Library cannot be put in the Pool, which he 
would favor, then it should be in a community center. Director Peakall asked 
whether this initiative would delay the possibility of adding parking to the Pool 
site, since this is a known need. Mayor Ryder said that wetlands flagging and 
DEP permitting would be needed before any impervious surface could be 
added, whether to do with parking or a community center. Director Currier 
said he can get an estimate of what a wetlands survey would cost. 
 
Resident Jeremy Jones asked whether the Library’s endowed funds are 
restricted in their use. Mayor Ryder said that if the Town at some point no 
longer uses the Edythe Dyer building that the original owner would have right 
of first refusal to acquire the property. Manager Jennings said he would need 
to look into how Library and Pool funds may be restricted. Councilor Cormier 
asked whether a community center would be a net savings or a net cost to 



the Town. Mayor Ryder said that part of the idea is to consolidate 
maintenance responsibilities to a smaller geographic footprint. He said that 
any proposal would need to go to voter referendum, but that we’re very 
preliminary and a proposal would need to be prepared in order to determine 
whether it warrants being brought forward as a formal proposal, and when.  
 
Councilor Wilde said he’s not interested in filling in the Pool. He said that in 
order to have a long range plan you need to start somewhere. He said that 
the discussion of whether or not a Library should be considered will need 
public input. Councilor McAvoy said that the current Library would require 
major investment to meet applicable code requirements because it wasn’t 
ever designed to be a Library. Councilor Marble agreed that we need to 
provide opportunities for public input. He does support proceeding with plans 
based on the modest cost proposed. Councilor McAvoy said he doesn’t think 
Hampden needs a complex like this. He said that anyone who wants indoor 
recreational space can rent the Skehan Center on weekends. Mayor Ryder 
said that Newburgh used to have a facility but it closed due to lack of janitorial 
resources, and that a new facility would lay out much better for senior 
citizens. He said a small investment in plans will provide more information 
that would be needed to evaluate costs of any such facility. He said he would 
meet with the Library Director.  

 
b. Update on evaluation of VFW Fields site potential to accommodate 

additional parking – Mayor Ryder presented a series of projects that have 
been identified by the Recreation Committee as needs and which would be 
eligible expenditures under the proposed C/R Account Policy. This included 
repairs to the tennis and basketball courts at the VFW Fields. He said that it 
would be good for the Town to set aside money annually in reserve accounts 
to provide funds for facilities maintenance over time. He spoke about the poor 
condition of the Marina boat ramp and the need for repairs. Manager 
Jennings said he had followed up with the vendor that quoted a price last 
June to Hamlin’s and that he received an updated proposal that cost 10% 
less. Mayor Ryder said that port-a-potty enclosures are needed, and that he’d 
identified someone who volunteered to construct five picnic tables for 
Dorothea Dix Park and Papermill Park at no cost if the Town provides the 
materials. Mayor Ryder said that parking could also be added at the VFW 
site. Full Council authorization will be needed to proceed with these public 
improvements. Manager Jennings said these items would be brought to the 
next Council meeting. 

 
c. Update on initiative to offer online registration and payment option for 

Recreation and Pool programs – Manager Jennings said that Director 
Abbott has done a great deal of background research regarding setting up 
online registration and payment, and has identified a vendor and received a 
proposal. He said that he felt this would provide greater service and 
convenience to the public, would reduce the administrative burden on staff 



associated with data entry in the current paper-based registration system, and 
that there is reason to think it could actually increase participation in 
Recreation and Pool programs. Director Abbott said the Recreation 
Committee has been talking about this for a couple of years. The proposal 
from MyRec.com is based on estimates of how much revenue would be 
processed through online payments if this system is set up. Because there is 
a cost for online payments, some fees would need to be increased. Director 
Peakall said that she’s evaluating the Pool fees structure, and expects to 
recommend changes to membership, swim lesson and facility rental costs but 
not to drop-in fees. Resident Jones Esq. said that ease of sale is very 
important to customer service and increasing sales.  

 
Councilor McAvoy asked whether some fees could be pulled out of the 
Ordinance so they could be modified without the legal costs associated with 
Ordinance public hearings. Manager Jennings said yes, if the Ordinance 
refers to and authorizes fees, these could be established in Policy that would 
require action in a public meeting but not a public hearing. 
 
There was support from the Committee to proceed with work toward setting 
up online registration and payment options for Recreation and Pool. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None. 
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – None. 
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
 
Angus Jennings 
Town Manager 
 

















SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, December 14, 2015 

 
MINUTES 

 
Attending: 
 Councilor Terry McAvoy   Councilor William Shakespeare 
 Mayor David Ryder    Councilor Stephen Wilde  
 Councilor Dennis Marble   Recreation Director Shelley Abbott  
 Town Manager Angus Jennings  Resident Francis Pergolizzi 
 
Chairman McAvoy called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

1. MINUTES – November 9, 2015 – It was motioned and seconded to approve the 
minutes of the November 9, 2015 Services Committee meeting. Unanimous vote 
(4-0) in favor. 
 
(Councilor Wilde arrived). 
 

2. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
a. Interview: Francis Pergolizzi, Recreation Committee – New Applicant – 

Mr. Pergolizzi appeared before the Committee and presented his experience 
relevant to the Recreation Committee, including 24 years as an intercollegiate 
athletic director and 16 years coaching college football. The Committee 
members expressed their appreciation for his interest to serve, and said we 
need more people like you. Motion by Councilor Shakespeare seconded by 
Councilor Marble to recommend that the Council appoint Francis Pergolizzi to 
the Recreation Committee. Unanimous (5-0) vote in favor. 

b. Anthony Mourkas, Dyer Library Board of Trustees – Re-Appointment 
c. Cheri Condon, Dyer Library Board of Trustees – Re-Appointment 
d. Patrick Foley, Pool Board – Re-Appointment 
e. Stephanie Shayne, Recreation Committee – Re-Appointment  

Motion by Councilor Marble, seconded by Councilor Shakespeare, to 
recommend Council reappointment of Anthony Mourkas to the Library Board 
of Trustees, Cheri Condon to the Library Board of Trustees, Patrick Foley to 
the Pool Board, and Stephanie Shayne to the Recreation Committee. 
Unanimous vote in favor. 

 
3. OLD BUSINESS – None.  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Update on Public Safety Good Neighbor and Telecare Programs – 

Sergeant Bailey – Due to a last-minute conflict Sergeant Bailey was unable 



to attend the meeting so at the recommendation of the Town Manager this 
agenda item was postponed until the January 11, 2016 meeting. 

b. Discussion of concept for Public Safety Advisory Group – Sergeant 
Bailey - Due to a last-minute conflict Sergeant Bailey was unable to attend 
the meeting so at the recommendation of the Town Manager this agenda item 
was postponed until the January 11, 2016 meeting. 

c. Skehan Center – Town Manager update on recent meeting and building 
tour, and ongoing facilities cost analysis – Recreation Director Shelley 
Abbott – Town Manager Jennings provided background regarding the work 
underway to fully understand the operating costs associated with the Town’s 
lease of the Skehan Center. Recreation Director Abbott reported on a site 
visit and review including her, the Town Manager, the DPW Director and the 
Town’s HVAC contractor when it was determined that portions of the Skehan 
Center building outside of the Town’s leased area are being heated, with 
charges adding to the Town’s costs. On a separate date, while electrical work 
was being completed outside of the leased area, the lights went out within the 
leased area, so it is known that these electrical lines are connected. Councilor 
Marble said it is the building owner’s responsibility to know how the different 
portions of the building are heated. Mayor Ryder said that the Recreation 
Department needs a facility with appropriate parking and facilities, and asked 
Director Abbott how the Department could function if it had a different facility 
rather than the Skehan Center. Director Abbott said it would depend on 
whether a facility was designed and sized appropriately. The Skehan Center 
facility is oversized for the Department purposes, and it was noted that the 
back half of the space, including locker rooms, is underutilized but adds to 
heating and maintenance costs. The constraints on parking are causing 
challenges for senior citizens participating in programs. Mayor Ryder noted 
that there’s very little parking, and no outdoor space for kids to run around. 
Director Abbott noted that the building boiler had not been replaced, as had 
been expected as part of the lease.  
 
Councilor Shakespeare said that something about how the electrical costs are 
allocated doesn’t add up, and that the wiring is atrocious. He agreed that it is 
the building owner’s responsibility to resolve this. He noted that senior 
citizens who use the facility love it. He wondered what a new facility would 
cost. Mayor Ryder charged Manager Jennings with communicating these 
issues to the building owner to see if he’d make changes to rectify the cost 
allocation for heating and electrical. Councilor Marble said that Manager 
Jennings has the backing of the Council. 
 
Mayor Ryder asked about parking. Director Abbott said that 50-60 senior 
citizens attend the morning sessions, and that while our lease says we have 
21 dedicated parking spaces we’re down to 18 due to recent re-striping, and 
sometimes others (including contractors working on the building) park in spots 
dedicated to the Skehan Center. She noted that the Christmas Tree sales 
have also made a lot of spaces unavailable, pushing more people to the 



Skehan Center spaces. Councilor McAvoy asked whether, if the Town was to 
terminate the lease, the space may still be available for rental on a per-hour 
basis to allow for continuation of the senior citizens’ exercise program. He 
acknowledged that parking will continue to be a constraint, and said he would 
support terminating the lease. Councilor Wilde said that the information we’re 
learning raises concerns but that we need to talk with the building owner.  
 
Manager Jennings said that he and Director Abbott would continue to 
document costs associated with Skehan Center operations. The Committee 
directed them to prepare two alternate budget proposals for FY17: one with 
the Skehan Center and one without, and including analysis of how each of 
these scenarios would affect both costs and Recreation programming. This 
alternatives analysis would support the Committee’s and the Council’s 
deliberations regarding FY17 budgeting. 
 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None. 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Mayor Ryder said that we need to look 
at Recreation fields and facilities town-wide in a coordinated way. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
 
Angus Jennings 
Town Manager 



  
 
TO:  Town Council 
 

FROM:  Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE:  December 11, 2015 
 

RE:  Ongoing review of facilities costs, Skehan Center  
 

 

In preparation for Monday’s discussion at the Services Committee regarding the Skehan Center, I 

had hoped to have a FY15 summary report of all such costs.  

 

On an ongoing basis, the Recreation Director has maintained records of costs associated with 

maintenance, utilities and operations of the Skehan Center. And, as it does for all town accounts, 

our Trio system includes records of all expenditures by date, amount, vendor and purpose as 

these transactions are posted on an at-least weekly basis with the warrants. 

 

However, the FY15 audit adjustments are still underway, and the audit adjustments for the 

Skehan Center, as an enterprise account (as well as the pool and sewer accounts) are the most 

complex and time intensive. So, while all other audit adjustments are substantially complete and 

verified, the audit adjustments for these three accounts will continue through next week. An 

overall facilities cost analysis, including audit-adjusted costs (and offsetting fees and revenues) 

for FY15 will need to await completion of the FY15 audit. And, the process of determining total 

facility costs will also be ongoing, as we’re working to quantify facilities maintenance costs 

associated with DPW snow removal, mowing etc.  

 

We are also working with the building owner to review existing parking allocation to take into 

account prior and potential changes in tenancy, including how this affects dedicated parking 

availability to the Skehan Center. 

 

In support of Monday’s discussion I’ve attached materials prepared by the Recreation Director 

documenting key energy costs of operating the Skehan Center. We will also provide updates at 

the meeting regarding recent site visits, and my meeting with the building owner. 

 

Following on the Recreation Director’s research, we will also provide the Committee with 

updates regarding review of the current heating arrangements based on terms of the lease. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 

townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 



 

 

 

Table 1. Summary of Oil and Electric Budgets and Costs, FY14-FY16 year-to-date 

 

 
 

 

 

Other Costs 

- FY15 cleaning costs (cleaning and supplies): $8,367.19  

- FY16 Budgeted Cost for Water and Sewer: $3,940 

- FY16 Budgeted Cost for Insurance/Taxes/Sprinkler Inspection: $1,432 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Energy Skehan Recreation Center

Oil

13-14 Budget 13-14 Spent* 14-15 Budget 14-15 Spent** 15-16 Budget YTD

$35,000.00 $28,185.88 $23,800.00 $26,746.70 $17,000.00 $1,024.64

7000 gallons x $3.40 7500 gallons x $2.20

not heating showers not heating showers

* through June-does not include year end invoices

** prior to audit adjustments

Electric

13-14 Budget 13-14 Spent* 14-15 Budget 14-15 Spent** 15-16 Budget YTD

$12,000.00 $14,121.91 $28,000.00 $23,529.59 $23,500.00 $3,462.72

Net of total LED cost

LED lighting install, FY15

cost $20,747.00

rebate Aug 15 $16,800.00

Net Cost: $3,947.00

* Dec- June-does not include year end invoices from HHALLC

** prior to audit adjustments



Table 2. Electrical costs by month, calendar year 2013, 2014, 2015 and Monthly Average Cost 

 

 
 

Table 3. Oil costs by month, calendar year 2013, 2014, 2015 and Monthly Average Cost 

 

 

Electrical Costs, Skehan Center, 2013-2015

Month 2013 2014 2015**

Monthly Avg. 

Cost

January $2,728.70 $2,844.21 $2,807.43 $2,793.45

February $3,359.94 $3,198.39 $3,405.66 $3,321.33

March $3,236.55 $3,393.20 $1,966.70 $2,865.48

April $2,665.52 $2,821.05 $1,136.89 $2,207.82

May $2,351.16 $1,865.06 $613.13 $1,609.78

June $1,915.37 $1,497.05 $683.03 $1,365.15

July $1,673.93 $1,269.04 $494.08 $1,145.68

August $1,796.87 $760.53 $659.92 $1,072.44

September* $2,820.70 $643.88 $736.11 $1,400.23

October $1,143.18 $630.52 $886.85

November $1,122.12 $1,122.12

December $2,373.78 $2,373.78

Annual Average: $22,164.12

* Ownership Change 9/9/13 from Town of Hampden to HHALLC.

** 48 LED Gym Lights installed late March 2015

Month 2014 2015**
Monthly 

Avg. Cost

January $8,439.42 $4,168.93 $6,304.18

February $5,187.42 $7,338.86 $6,263.14

March $4,451.57 $4,337.53 $4,394.55

April $2,620.87 $2,147.54 $2,384.21

May $963.96 $634.73 $799.35

June $319.94 $28.92 $174.43

July $6.77 $6.77

August

September* $5.85 $5.85

October $17.23 $487.05 $252.14

November $3,648.35 $944.56 $2,296.46

December $4,411.99 $4,411.99

Annual Average: $27,293.05

Skehan Center Oil Use Tracking



3/28/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Fwd: Recap of Meeting 12/21/15

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&search=inbox&th=153a9a376867a540&siml=153a9a376867a540 1/3

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Fwd: Recap of Meeting 12/21/15 
1 message

Dean Bennett <economicdevelopment@hampdenmaine.gov> Thu, Mar 24, 2016 at 1:19 PM
To: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Dean L. Bennett
Director of Community and Economic Development
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine  04444
2078623034

A reasonable effort will be made to respond to all emails received in a timely manner. Please note that all emails sent
from or coming to this address are considered a public document and are subject to the State of Maine Freedom of
Access Law. 

 Forwarded message 
From: Myles Block <codeenforcement@hampdenmaine.gov>
Date: Mon, Feb 1, 2016 at 1:53 PM
Subject: Re: Recap of Meeting 12/21/15
To: Sue Higgins Prior <sue@lhadm.com> 
Cc: Dean Bennett <economicdevelopment@hampdenmaine.gov>, Jared LeBarnes <buildinginspector@
hampdenmaine.gov>, Jason Lundstrom <fireinspector@hampdenmaine.gov>, Angus Jennings
<townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>, Joe Rogers <jlrogers@hampdenmaine.gov>, Kelly Karter
<assessor@hampdenmaine.gov>

Sue,
I have completed my review and concluded the following:

1) Per Section 4.7.1.1.18 of the current Zoning Ordinance you will only be required to have 75% of the required
parking for the occupancies on this site and that since it is a change of use in an existing site development that
was made prior to the zoning amendment for that section the back parking lot will not have to be brought up to
current parking lot standards. However the lot must be maintained year round to provide a minimum of 120
parking spaces as shown on the drawing by Kiser & Kiser dated 7/1/13 and known as Exhibit B in the Town of
Hampden/Historic Hampden Academy, LLC Lease Agreement.

2) From my recollection we agreed on relining the paved parking lots to conform to the drawing noted above
within the next 3 years and possibly bringing the back parking lot to standard as well.

3) Based on the square footage submitted by the Architect David Merritt and yourself I have concluded that
without the 25% reduction you would need 252 total parking spaces. With the 25% reduction you would need 190
parking spaces. Based on the above referenced drawing there is space for 278 parking spaces. You have
enough spaces for the current occupancies and have a remaining 88 spaces for future occupancies. I included
BHBT has a current occupancy.

4) Based on the above I will be issuing Certificate of Compliance for Lafayette Hotels, Top Hat Dance,
Momentum, & Colley Hill Candle. A COC has already been issued for Calvary Church, Davis Learning Center
and Hampden Rec. A COC will be issued for BHBT when that project is completed.

I will be mailing the COCs by the end of the week. 

Also, what is the status of the Fire Lane signs and when contractors are parking can the please park within
designated parking spaces and not take up 3 or more with one vehicle?

tel:207-862-3034
mailto:codeenforcement@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:sue@lhadm.com
mailto:economicdevelopment@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:buildinginspector@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:fireinspector@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:jlrogers@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:assessor@hampdenmaine.gov


3/28/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Fwd: Recap of Meeting 12/21/15

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&search=inbox&th=153a9a376867a540&siml=153a9a376867a540 2/3

Please let me know if you have any other questions.

~M


Myles M. Block
Code Enforcement Officer
Local Plumbing Inspector
Firefighter/Paramedic

President, Professional Firefighters of Hampden, I.A.F.F. Local 4903

Find Us on Facebook! 

Hampden Public Safety
Police  Fire  EMS  Code Enforcement
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
2078624500/4000 x 218
codeenforcement@hampdenmaine.gov

This email message is intended for the exclusive use of the individual or entity identified above.  It may contain information
which is privileged and/or confidential under both state and federal law. Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know")
law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for use in matters concerning Town Business or containing
information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be inspected by any person upon
request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you are not the intended recipient or an agent of the recipient, you are
notified that any further dissemination, copy or disclosure of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you received this
transmittal in error, please immediately notify us at (207) 8624000 and return the original transmission to us by mail without
making a copy to: Hampden Public Safety, 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, ME 04444.  Your cooperation in protecting
confidential information is greatly appreciated.

On Thu, Dec 31, 2015 at 10:39 AM, Sue Higgins Prior <sue@lhadm.com> wrote:
Hi Myles

I hope that you had a wonderful Christmas and that you have a Happy New Year.

I wanted to recap our meeting from Monday 12/21 with you, Danny and myself.

We discussed the parking lot standards according to the ordinance and according to the lease with the Town
of Hampden.  You had never seen the lease or sales agreement where the Town of Hampden agreed that all
parking would be shared parking and that this facility would not have to meet the normal parking requirements
based on the ordinance. You had agreed to use Ordinance 4.7.18  Minimum OffStreet Parking Space
Requirements...that at least 75% of required parking spaces are provided.  

We appreciate your being reasonable and recommending that we remove the square footage for the hallway,
storage rooms, locker rooms and bathrooms from the total tenant square footage to be used in the calculation
for the parking spaces.  Attached is a spreadsheet that shows each tenant.  It includes their square footage
and a column for the hallway square footage deduction and a column for the storage/lockers/conf. room and
bathrooms square footage deduction.  The last column shows the spaces needed according to the lease for
the Skeehan Center and the Church and the rest of the tenants are based on the square footage method by
type of tenant.  If we use the 75% required parking spaces available, we have more than enough to meet this
ordinance.

You gave us 3 years to upgrade the back parking lot (dirt area to the right of the industrial building).  You also
indicated that if the ground is level it could be considered a parking lot just as the town had done for Hampden
Academy when the high school had 800 students and 50  100 teachers and support staff who all parked
there.   The parking lot was considered parking even though it wasn't paved.  Danny's children went to school
at Hampden Academy and it was definitely used for parking.  

You have asked us to redo the signs on the curved lane, in the front, to say "No Parking Fire Lane".  We have

http://www.facebook.com/Hampdencodeenforcement
tel:207-862-4500
mailto:codeenforcement@hampdenmaine.gov
tel:%28207%29%20862-4000
mailto:sue@lhadm.com


3/28/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Fwd: Recap of Meeting 12/21/15

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&search=inbox&th=153a9a376867a540&siml=153a9a376867a540 3/3

ordered these.

We are also ordering the 2 Knox Boxes for the Fire Department based on your discussions with Gabe, our
maintenance person.  We will put one at the front of the building with our Master Key and the Bar Harbor Bank
and Trust key fob.  The 2nd one will be mounted in the back building by our main entrance door.  This will also
have a Master Key.

We think we have installed all the exit lights that were recommended during our walk through.  We would like
this building to be the safest in Hampden and we are excited to bring so many new jobs to the Town of
Hampden.

Please review the attached and let me know if you have any questions or need additional information.  If you
agree with this analysis, please sign the attached spreadsheet and return to me at your earliest convenience.  

Thank you for all of your continued help with our facility.

Sue Higgins Prior
Payroll Manager/Accounting Manager
Lafayette Hotels
155 Littlefield Avenue 
Bangor, ME 04401 
2078628008 x117 
2078626465 fax
For all Lafayette Hotel locations visit www.lafayettehotels.biz
 

tel:207-862-8008%20x117
tel:207-862-6465
http://www.lafayettehotels.biz/


 

memo 
 

Town of Hampden-Recreation Department 

To: Hampden Town Council-Services Committee 

From: Shelley Abbott; Recreation Director 

CC: Angus Jennings; Town Manager 

Date: 4/6/2016 

Re: Affiliated Program Discussion Services Committee Meeting 4/11/16 

Comments: 
 

 
 
Please find attached information regarding Affiliated Programs of the Hampden 
Recreation Department and the Town of Hampden.  Currently, six programs, which 
are governed by their own boards, have agreed to Affiliated Program Status for the 
2016 year.  Those six programs are: Bronco Travel Soccer, Bronco Little League, 
Bronco Youth Football, Bronco Travel Basketball, Hampden Children’s Day, and the 
Hampden Senior Citizens Club.  
 
Attached are the Affiliated Program Guidelines that were updated with the 
assistance of the Recreation Committee in March of 2015. In addition, I have 
provided a document with other information to help you understand program by 
program how each is supported by the Recreation Department and the Town of 
Hampden, along with other program registration fee information I was able to find.   
 
During preparation of the FY 17 budget I took a serious look at expenses and how 
Affiliated Programs were supported. My proposals include cuts to Bronco Little 
League ($975.00) and the Hampden Senior Citizens Club (reduction of $600, from 
$1500 to $900).   
 
At least two current Affiliated Programs have expressed concerns with the level of 
services the Town provides not meeting their program’s expectations.  In response 
to those concerns, the Manager plans to place this on the Services Committee 
Agenda on Monday, April 11, 2016, for discussion.   



Bronco Travel Basketball 

Staff (Jill) on board 

Town fiscal agent 

Town Insuring agent 

Skehan Center at reduced rental rate (half) 

Town provided background screening 

Bronco Travel Soccer 

Rec Committee member (Jason Sharpe) on 
board (March 2016 resigned) 

Town field use at Lura Hoit Fields   

Shared Revenue/Expense Summer Soccer Camp 

Fiscal agent for week long summer soccer camp 

Town Field Maintenance-mowing and trimming  

Skehan Center banquet use at no cost (some 
years) 

Bronco Little League 

Town Field Use at VFW Drive and Ballfield Road 

Town Field Maintenance-mowing and trimming, 
fence issues 

Town Insured Facilities/Buildings 

Electricity Costs and Repair Paid by Town 

Skehan Center at reduced rental rate (half) 

Town had paid $975 towards required LL 
insurance (eliminated in FY 17 budget) 

Bronco Youth Football 

Staff on board (Shelley) 

Town fiscal agent 

Town insuring agent 

Town provided background screening 

Skehan Center banquet use at no cost 

BTBC uses RSU 22 facilities primarily 

BTBC supports HA scholarships, equipment 
needs, and freshman basketball at HA 

BTBC provides rental income at Skehan for 
annual February tourney (2 weekends) 

Registration fee: $75.00 pp; retained by club 

 

 

BTSC used Bouchard fields (last season 2015) 
and Lura Hoit fields in 2015 

BTSC provides field lining services and paint 
supplies, tentative field maintenance items 
spring 2016 (aeration/over seed)-which is being 
challenged by club from fall 2015 season 

Registration fee: $140 first/$130 each 
additional, retained by club 

 

 

BLL pays water and sewer charges at the VFW 
facility, winterization of the snack shack 
annually, reimburses porta potty rental at 
Ballfield Road for May and June, supplies field 
mix, and annual field work days 

Registration fee: $45 first/$35 each additional, 
Jr/Sr league $80, retained by club 

Collects sponsorship signage on field fence, 
retained by club 

 

BYF used fields owned by Lafayette at old HA 
and RSU 22 turf field 

 

Registration fee: $125 first/$75 each additional, 
retained by club 

 



Hampden Seniors Club 

Town provided $1500 for senior bus trips in 
2015 (bussing cost) (reduced to $900 in FY 17 
budget) 

 

Hampden Children’s Day 

Staff on board (Shelley) 

Town insuring agent 

Provides meeting space for group at no charge 

 

Hampden Garden Club? 

Town typically provides mulch/compost for 
town garden space at municipal building, pool 
gazebo garden 

Rec department provides staff to assist with 
edging at pool gazebo garden, and provides 
staff for mulch movement, and end of season 
plant trimming 

 

 

 

All Affiliated Programs have 
completed their agreements for 
the 2016 year and these are filed 
at the Town Office 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bus has had pick up in Bangor and Old Town in 
(2015) participants were charged fees to cover 
items 

Annual Membership Dues are required. (? $10) 

 

Town provides event day staffing Fri PM, 
Saturday (7 a-10 p), and additional details by 
Public Safety and Public Works 



Guidelines For Affiliated Programs 
Hampden Recreation 

Town of Hampden, Maine 
 
 

All Teams, Organizations, Boards, Committees, etc…. wishing to be sanctioned by the Town of 
Hampden and the Hampden Recreation Department for purposes of insurance, facilities, or monetary 
contribution must adhere to the following regulations: 
 

• Any group that has a committee or governing board must have a representative of the town as 
a voting member of that board.  A representative of the town will include a Town Councilor, 
a Recreation Committee Member or an employee of the Recreation Department. The 
representative cannot be an officer of the committee or governing board. 

 
• All groups that have any coaches, must have a formal coaching training session whether by 

recreation department staff or by a national coaching certificate.  Also, all coaches/ instructors 
must complete a Town of Hampden issued background check with acceptable results being 
received prior to having any contact with the participants. 

 
• All groups will make every attempt to be as inclusive as possible.  All who wish to participate 

shall be eligible to participate regardless of age, gender, race, talent or ability to pay unless the 
program has specific criteria for that activity (i.e. being 55 years old to be in a senior citizen 
program).  Any group using RSU 22 facilities will include residents of Newburgh, Frankfort, 
and Winterport as eligible for tryouts and cannot cut them from the program on that basis.  
For activities using town owned facilities, residents have priority over other non-residents - 
even those attending RSU 22.  

 
• All groups wishing to use Town of Hampden or RSU 22 facilities must fill out a facilities 

request form.  If a RSU 22 facilities request form is being submitted and the group is using the 
Town’s insurance, the form must be signed by the Recreation Director or Assistant Recreation 
Director before submission to RSU 22. 

 
• School and town programs and activities take space and time priority over affiliated programs 

in RSU 22 facilities. 
   
• Any teams where there is the potential for cuts, must hold a tryout where prospective 

participants are given in writing an invitation through all RSU 22 schools at least two weeks 
in advance of the tryout date. 

 
• All Affiliated Programs need to supply minutes on a minimum of a quarterly basis and copies 

of any by-laws,or by-law changes to the Recreation Department to be kept in the town’s vault 
of the organization’s ongoing board activities.   Schedules should also be provided prior to 
events, leagues, or programs to assist with inquiries from the public. 

 
• Any program using Town of Hampden or RSU 22 equipment and/or facilities are responsible 

for the upkeep and cleanliness of facilities and the proper return of equipment.  Failure to do 
so may result in suspension of affiliated program status.  Organizations will be billed for any 
lost or destroyed equipment. 

 
• The Town of Hampden shall be compensated for any employee that needs to be present at any 

function run by an Affiliated Program.  The compensation shall be equal to the salary of that 
employee.  

   



• The Town of Hampden Recreation Department reserves the right to deny or cancel any group 
from Affiliated Program status and its benefits from Affiliate Program status if guidelines are 
not being followed.  All groups must apply to the Hampden Recreation Director annually for 
affiliated program status and sign a form stating that all guidelines will be met. 

 
• Any group using RSU 22 facilities may be required to have a RSU 22 faculty member or a 

Town of Hampden employee on site.  If there is a cost for that requirement, the fee shall be 
paid by the Affiliated Program.   

 
• Any Affiliated Program using Town of Hampden Skehan Recreation Center facilities on a 

space available basis will be granted use at a 50% reduced rental rate of current rental rates.  
These monies will be used to support expenses related to staffing and miscellaneous building 
expenses.  The Town of Hampden will not issue keys to our facilities, or allow use without an 
employee onsite. 

 
• RSU 22 has established protocols for facility reservations and key holder expectations.  Key 

holders should not be entering the facilities without advance approved insured reservations by 
RSU 22.  All facilities should be left clean and secured at the end of use.  Some RSU 22 
facilities may require the completion of paperwork and signing out of a numbered key for 
seasonal facility use.  Key holders should abide by all requirements established by RSU 22.   

 
 
 

President/Chairperson (s) _________________________   Affiliated Program ________________ 
 
 
Signature (s)  ___________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
  ___________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
 
Town Of Hampden Official _________________________ Title: _______________________ 
 
Signature   ___________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted 9/14/2009 
Updated 2/19/2015 
Approved Revisions 3/3/15 Recreation Committee 















 


